
 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

Minutes of the April 14, 2014 

 

Regular Meeting 

 

Page 1 of 7 

 

  

 

  

 

TOWN OF ARRIBA 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

 

Monday, April 14, 2014 

 

Arriba Town Hall, 711 Front Street, Arriba, CO  80804 

 

  

 

Call to Order 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Alex Flores called the meeting to order at 7:31. Roll call 

for the Arriba Town Board was read and those answering were Jody 

Schifferns, Josie Hart, Troy McCue and Tyler Andersen. Bob Rush and Ted 

Grundmeier were absent. 

 

  

 

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Tyler Andersen. 

 

  

 

Public Audience included Marcella Flores, Dolle Lehrkamp, Beverly 

Langley, Karen Kovar, Mike Koehn, Pam Koehn, Caleb Brent and Leroy King. 

Dolle Lehrkamp said she had 2 items to discuss: Town Election and Code 

Enforcement. The Board said that they would add them to the Agenda. 

 

Beverly Langley said she wanted to know what happened with the mail 

ballots and the election and why it wasn’t supervised better. Beverly 

Langley said that there is a truck sitting on the Town right of way on 

Elm Street obstructing the view of that intersection. 

Beverly Langley said that there is a deep hole on her neighbors property 

that she feels is a safety hazard. 

 



Approval of Agenda Trustee McCue moved to add Code Enforcement and Town 

Election to the Agenda and to approve the Agenda as amended. Trustee 

Schifferns seconded and the motion passed. 

 

  

 

Oath of Office 

 

Municipal Judge Dolle Lehrkamp gave Alex Flores the Oath of Office for 

Mayor. She gave Caleb Brent the Oath of Office for Trustee. She gave Troy 

McCue the Oath of Office for Trustee. She gave Mike Koehn the Oath of 

Office for Trustee. Caleb Brent and Mike Koehn took seats on the Town of 

Arriba Board of Trustees. 

 

  

 

Appointments: 

Clerk Trustee Hart said that there had been no more applications received 

for Town Clerk. The Board decided that a show of hands would suffice for 

voting on the new Town Clerk. The Board was all in agreement that they 

would like to see Josie Hart get the position. Trustee McCue moved to 

hire and appoint Josie Hart as Town Clerk and that she will be paid $12 

per hour. She will work Monday, Wednesday and Friday 8-5 unless she needs 

to change the schedule for personal reasons or other reasons. 

 

  

 

  

 

Minutes of the April 14, 2014 

 

Regular Meeting 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 

  

 

  

 

There will be no 90 day probation. Trustee Schifferns seconded. Trustees 

McCue, Schifferns, Andersen, Brent and Koehn voted yes. Motion passed. 

Josie Hart accepted the appointment and will no longer be on the Arriba 

Board of Trustees. 

 

Treasurer Trustee Schifferns moved to appoint Pam Koehn as Treasurer, 

Trustee McCue seconded. Motion passed. 

Attorney Trustee McCue moves to appoint Stan Kimble as the Town Attorney, 

Trustee Schifferns seconded. Motion passed. 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Trustee Andersen nominated Troy McCue as Mayor Pro-Tem, 

Trustee Brent seconded. Trustee Schifferns moved to cease nominations. 

Trustee Andersen seconded the motion. Motion passed. 

Open Trustee Seat   Mayor Flores asked Dolle Lehrkamp if the Board could 

appoint someone to fill the open trustee seats right now or if the Board 



needed to wait. Dolle Lehrkamp said that the Board could fill the 

position now or wait but that the positions had to be filled within 32 

days or the Town would need to hold an election. Trustee Schifferns 

nominated Karen Kovar and Tyler Andersen to be appointed to the 2 open 

Trustee seats. 

Tyler Andersen that he would not accept the nomination tonight but that 

if the Town could not find anyone to fill the position he would take it 

then. Trustee Koehn nominated Marcella Flores. The Board agreed that 

these open seats should be advertised in the paper and nominations will 

be taken again at the Board’s May regular meeting. 

 

Approval of the Minutes Trustee Schifferns stated the she wanted 

specifics in the minutes as to what the differences were on the 2 mail 

ballots that Steffanie Bell had mailed out. Trustee Schifferns asked if 

the Town had kept Mike Luft’s mail ballot that he had brought in. Josie 

Hart said that she couldn’t remember if he had left it here or had taken 

it with him. Trustee Schifferns said the Town should keep that ballot. 

Trustee McCue moved to approve the minutes from the March 26th emergency 

meeting as amended and to approve the minutes from the 27th and 29th 

emergency meetings. Trustee Andersen seconded and the motion passed. 

 

  

 

Approval of Accounts Receivable and Payable March 

The Board reviewed the Receivables and Payables for March. 

There were questions concerning payments to Glatfelter for the Town’s 

insurance, CNA Surety for the clerks bond, Pinnacol Assurance for the 

Town’s workman’s comp, and to the Town of Flagler for the Town’s trash. 

Josie Hart explained that the Town’s insurance is billed twice a year. 

The CNA Surety is once a year and covers the clerk position. Pinnacol 

Assurance is billed the first few months of the year. The payment for the 

Town of Flagler was for 2 months of trash service. 

 

Trustee McCue moved to approve accounts receivable and payable for March. 

Trustee Schifferns seconded and the motion passed. 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

Minutes of the April 14, 2014 

 

Regular Meeting 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 

  

 

  

 



Approval to Pay April Bills    

 

The Board reviewed the April bills. 

 

Tom Rush said that about $300 of the DJ Petro bill was for repairs at the 

sewer pond. 

 

Trustee McCue explained that Interstate Irrigation had originally agreed 

to repair the sewer pond but then never came back to complete the repairs 

despite Tom Rush and Pat Parker calling them many times. Pat Parker had 

Colorado Lining International finish the repairs. 

 

Trustee Koehn asked if there was more detail on the DJ petro bill and 

breakdown for each vehicle. Tom Rush said that he did record which 

vehicle he’s filling on the charge tickets. Josie Hart said that the Town 

gets these tickets monthly and keeps them in the file. 

The Board agreed that all receipts and bills could be looked at during a 

meeting or at anytime. 

 

Trustee Koehn asked why this information wasn’t included on the bill’s 

detail. 

 

Josie Hart said that no one had ever asked for that information to be put 

on the bill’s detail. 

 

Trustee McCue pointed out that several bills on the April bill’s detail 

were broken down and very detailed. 

Josie Hart noted the bill for the QuickBooks upgrade and explained that 

the Town has QuickBooks 2011 and will be required to upgrade to 

QuickBooks 2014. 

 

Trustee Andersen moved to approve the April bills. Trustee McCue 

seconded. Motion passed. 

 

  

 

Dog Citations Josie Hart said that she had sent out tickets to the owners 

of the 3 dogs that had been running loose. She had set a date and time 

for the Municipal court with Dolle Lehrkamp. It will be Monday, May 5th 

at 9:00am. 

 

Code Enforcement 

 

Dolle Lehrkamp said that she had been gathering up citations from 

different towns for Arriba. She contacted Stan Kimble to make she was 

doing things correctly. 

Dolle Lehrkamp told the Board the Town needs to appoint a Code Enforcer, 

and it cannot be the Municipal Judge or the Town Clerk. And, that the 

Code Enforcer is the person who issues the citations, and will attempt to 

deliver them in person. Dolle explained court laws and proceedings and 

how that pertains to Arriba, and why the Town’s citations need to be 

different then larger Town’s. Dolle Lehrkamp said that Stan Kimble wants 

to meet with the Board to discuss all of this and a date and time would 

need to be set. If Stan Kimble attended a Board meeting the Town would be 



charged his attorney fees, or the Board could meet with Stan Kimble at 

his office. 

Dolle Lehrkamp said that the Town needs to appoint a Code Enforcer before 

the meeting with Stan Kimble. 

Dolle Lehrkamp said that the Town needs to follow proper protocol and 

procedure with court proceedings and issuing citations because the Town 

will be liable and so is the Town Board and Municipal judge. 

 

Minutes of the April 14, 2014 

 

Regular Meeting 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 

  

 

  

 

Dolle Lehrkamp said that this makes the dog citations void. She said that 

she will be here on May 5th and if people show up she will explain things 

to them and drop the fines. 

Dolle Lehrkamp suggested that the Town makes up a welcome packet 

informing people of the Town’s ordinances. She suggested the Town send 

out warning letter before sending out citations. 

 

The Board agreed that Stan Kimble should be asked to attend the April 

29th action meeting at 7:30. 

 

The Board discussed sending out warning letters before issuing tickets 

and fines. 

Trustee McCue moves to appoint Alex Flores as the Town’s Code Enforcer. 

Trustee Koehn seconded, motion passed. 

 

 

Town Election  Dolle Lehrkamp gave Josie Hart the documents from the 

Election and stated that everything has been certified with the Secretary 

of State and election results had been posted in the paper. 

 

Dolle Lehrkamp said that the date to file a petition for a recount was 

April 11. The date to file to contest the election is April 18th. All the 

records from the election have been locked in the ballot box and Dolle 

has the keys to the Ballot box. She said that she will keep the keys 

until after the 18th. 

Dolle explained election laws and also explained why the Town couldn’t 

cancel the election. 

Beverly Langley questioned why the Town was assigning people to the Board 

when people had run for the Board and had received votes. 

 

Dolle Lehrkamp explained that at 7pm on Election Day the election is over 

and those candidates are no longer candidates. 

 

Josie Hart stated that Chris Snyder had submitted her bill to the Town 

for the work on the election and it totaled at $127.92. Josie Hart 



requested approval to pay Chris Snyder. Trustee McCue moved to pay Christ 

Snyder $127.92. Trustee Andersen seconded and the motion passed. 

 

Trustee Koehn questioned prosecuting Steffanie Bell for the expenses 

incurred from the election mistakes. 

Mayor Flores said that this could be covered under the Clerks Bond. 

Josie Hart said that it wouldn’t really be worth prosecuting Steffanie 

Bell for expenses for the election mistakes. She explained that the Town 

budgets about $1000 for the election and as far as she had figured the 

Town didn’t go over that budgeted amount. 

 

Mayor Flores commented that this might be something to ask the Town 

Attorney. 

Dolle Lehrkamp said that the Town could file a complaint with the 

District Attorney 

 

through Stan Kimble about Steffanie Bell. Dolle Lehrkamp said that it in 

her opinion it would be a long and expensive process. She said that since 

the election laws changed in February and implemented in March for the 

April election there have been numerous problems with elections in many 

different Towns. 

 

  

 

Minutes of the April 14, 2014 

 

Regular Meeting 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

There was discussion on the Town’s election and what the Town could do to 

prevent problems in the future. 

 

Board agreed that Stan Kimble will be questioned about prosecuting 

Steffanie Bell for the mistakes made with the Election.                       

 

  

 

CML Handbooks Trustee Schifferns said that would like to have Josie Hart 

order 6 books for the Board. The Board agreed that this was fine. 

Trustee McCue explained that CML is the Colorado Municipal League and 

they have handbooks that give direction for volunteer Boards. They are a 

good resource and the Town pays a membership fee to be a part of CML. 

They hold meetings and workshops for Boards. Trustee Koehn said that CML 

is holding training in Limon in May. He was unsure of the date and time. 

 



Dolle Lehrkamp said that she had property use information for anyone that 

wants it. She said Arriba is not zoned but if someone would like to take 

on the project of zoning she has all the information for it. 

 

Caleb Brent’s trash business was discussed. Dolle Lehrkamp said that she 

contacted the state water commissioner and the Colorado Department of 

Public Health and Environment. The CDPHE told her that it is a Town 

ordinance issue and would be dealt with through the Town. The state water 

commissioner said that the only regulation was that wells could not be 

located closer than 100 feet from a source of contaminants or 50 feet 

from a septic tank, sewer line and vessel containing contaminants. 

Trustee Brent said that he would measure the distance from his trash 

trailer to the Town wells. 

Trustee Brent asked if there had been complaints about his trash service. 

It was explained that there had been concerns about the trash 

contaminating the Town wells and concerns about varmints and bugs the 

trash could attract, and smells from the trash. Trustee Brent explained 

that he picks up the trash every Saturday morning then dumps the trailer 

when it’s full. He said he could put a cover over the trailer. 

 

  

 

Beverly Langley said she would like the Board to address the truck parked 

on the right of way on Elm Street and the hole in her neighbor’s yard. 

 

Mayor Flores said that as Code Enforcer he would talk to this person. 

Dolle Lehrkamp suggested that if talking to this person did not resolve 

the issue the Town should send a letter of warning and then a citation 

would be issued and then a summons. 

 Dolle Lehrkamp suggested that the Town have an Ordinance Committee go 

through all the Town ordinances to find which ones need to be modified or 

rescinded and re-type the 

 

ordinances and post them on the Town’s website. 

There was discussion on the whole Board going through the ordinances. 

Dolle Lehrkamp 

 

  

 

  

 

Minutes of the April 14, 2014 

 

Regular Meeting 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 

  

 

  

 

said she would schedule a day for this. 

The Board discussed making a welcome packet for new residents. 

 



Maintenance Report  Tom Rush told the Board that the estimate from 

America Engineering to repair the leak in the tank is $3,225.00. The tank 

has been leaking at a seam since it was put up. There was discussion on 

the tank’s warranty. The Board agreed that Stan Kimble should be asked 

about this. 

Tom Rush said that the sewer lining repair is all done, except for a 

little dirt work that he needs to do. Tom Rush said that there might be 

some problems with the effluent levels at the end of this month. 

Mayor Flores said that Pat Parker wants to retire from being the Town’s 

water and sewer licensing. The Board discussed options on who could do 

this for the Town. Trustee Brent expressed interest in this and said he 

would look into it. 

 

Clerks Report Josie Hart said she was working on the minutes from the 

March regular meeting and would have them out for the May regular 

meeting. 

 

Josie Hart said that the people on 209 Colorado Ave would like to have a 

street light. There was discussion on street lights. 

Josie Hart said that Tom Rush’s retirement account was behind $2,100. She 

explained that $75 is taken from each of Tom’s paychecks and the Town 

matches it, and then sends a check of $300 to Tom’s retirement account. 

Steffanie Bell had not paid his account for any of 2014 and had missed a 

few months in 2013 and missed a few months in 2012. The Board agreed that 

a check should be sent to Tom Rush’s retirement to make it current. 

Josie Hart said the Board needed to decide who would be the 4th person on 

the Town’s accounts signature cards. Right now there is Alex Flores, Troy 

McCue and Josie Hart on the signature cards. Josie Hart said that the 

Board needs to decide now so that she could get a new account set up for 

the Town’s website’s payport for online utility payments. Trustee Brent 

said he could be on the signature cards. 

Josie Hart said that she would be setting up the account for the online 

payments and asked the Board what they would like to name it. The Board 

discussed names for the account and decided Online Payments account would 

work. 

Josie Hart said that the Town really needs to consider replacing the Town 

Hall computer as the current one is very slow and takes a long time to 

load programs. Josie Hart said that she waited 4 hours one day for it to 

load QuickBooks. The Board discussed this. Trustee Schifferns moved to 

approve spending up to $400 on a new computer tower for Town Hall. 

Trustee McCue seconded and the motion passed. The Board agreed that a HP 

or Dell should be purchased. 

There was discussion on finding someone to transfer all the Town’s files. 

It was suggested to ask James Martin in Limon. 

Josie Hart said she would be gone Wednesday afternoon and all day Friday. 

She 

 

explained that her daughter was getting her port removed on Thursday and 

she wasn’t sure how long recovery for that would be. 

 

  

 

Minutes of the April 14, 2014 

 



Regular Meeting 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

  

 

  

 

Treasurer’s Report   The Board reviewed the report. All accounts looked 

good. Pam Koehn had noted that there hadn’t been a bank statement or 

reconciliation for the Museum account. 

 

  

 

Trustees Report   

 

Trustee Andersen asked how the water accounts are and if there were any 

that were behind. Josie Hart said that there weren’t that many that were 

behind, she had sent out 5 shut off notices. There was one account that 

was pretty high but she had sent a shut off notice to them. 

Trustee Andersen asked about the insurance claim on Bob Schoonover’s 

bill. Josie Hart said she thought it had been settled but she would check 

into it. 

Trustee Andersen said he appreciated serving on the Town Board. 

Trustee Koehn reported that Josie Hart had told him that several people 

had paid their Town bill using the website. 

Josie Hart said that when she sent out the water and sewer bills she had 

no way to check the website for payments. A few people had come in 

showing their receipts from their online payment. 

Trustee Koehn had a question about the trash in the road from the house 

by the grain elevator. Mayor Flores said that he would talk to them about 

this. 

Trustee Schifferns wanted to note that the community yard sale will be 

held June 21st. Trustee Schifferns apologized to the public for letting 

them down. 

Trustee Schifferns said she thought the Town should send flowers to Chris 

Snyder. The Board agreed that this was fine. 

 

Trustee McCue apologized for being out of Town during the election 

problems. 

Trustee McCue gave an update on LCEDC; a new director has been hired and 

should be attending 2 Arriba Board meetings a year. 

 

All the Trustees thanked Tyler Andersen for serving on the Board. 

 

Mayor Report Mayor Flores thanked everyone for attending the meeting and 

thanked Tyler Andersen for serving on the Board. 

 

  

 

Adjournment There being no further business to bring before the Board, 

Trustee Schifferns moved to adjourn the meeting, Trustee McCue seconded. 

Mayor Flores adjourned the meeting at 9:23. 

 



  

 

Submitted by Josie Hart 

 

  

 

Signed by_____________________ 

 

 

Approved by the Board on ________________ 

 

  


